Appendix 1

Township of Esquimalt Heritage Values

T - ;’ ' - - -
ESQUIMAIL Township of Esquimalt Heritage Values
— Derived from Heritage Values Open House held October 18, 2014

Introduction

On completing its review of the ‘“Township of Esquimalt Heritage Values Report -November 2014’, the
Heritage Advisory Committee (HAC) has identified the following heritage values for the Township of
Esquimalt. The heritage values outlined below follow from the five themes established by Heritage B.C.

Peopling the Land

Esquimalt’s heritage lies in the physical qualities that have made it a natural place for occupation for
centuries. Its sheltered deep water harbour, moderate climate, and bountiful land and sea have allowed
the Township to develop into a place of prosperous business and employment, while maintaining a
sense of community in spite of being part of a larger metropolitan area.

Developing Economies

Economically, Esquimalt has played an important role as a regional centre of industry and employment.
The strength of the community’s economic heritage lies in its favourable connection between the land
and water, its physical location between two harbours, its connection to the Esquimalt and Nanaimo
Railway and its proximity to the larger metropolitan area; qualities that have supported and sustained
Esquimalt’s economic evolution over time. Esquimalt is home to two graving docks, one being the
oldest the other being the largest on the Pacific Coast. Shipbuilding, manufacturing, commerce,
industry, and tourism are the foundation of Esquimalt’s sustainability.

Governance and Institutional Life

Esquimalt’s institutional and governmental identity is unique. It involves relationships with the Esquimalt
and Songhees First Nations and multiple levels of Government. These relationships have influenced
how the community has developed physically, economically, and socially since the mid-nineteenth
century.

Esquimalt has deep institutional roots as a military base and the role of the military in shaping the
community is intrinsic to its heritage — Esquimalt has identified itself as a military community since the
formal recognition of the Royal Navy Dockyard in 1865 and the establishment of Work Point Barracks
as the army base in 1887. Esquimalt is Canada’s primary defence establishment on Canada’s West
Coast.

Building Social and Community Life

Socially, the “small town” heritage of the community has endured since its earliest days, and is
supported by traditional activities such as festivals, parades, and sporting events, and by gathering
places such as parks, public facilities, schools and places of worship, pubs, social and sporting clubs.
Esquimalt residents value the fact that their community fosters a strong sense of connection to one’s
neighbours and to nature.

Expressing Intellectual and Cultural Life

Esquimalt is an excellent place to live, work and play and this is reflected in its built heritage and
cultural landscapes. Its residential, commercial, and industrial buildings reflect the fact that Esquimalt
has appealed to and continues to attract a diverse population. The importance of Esquimalt’s natural
heritage is evident in the orientation of its neighbourhoods, and the number of areas dedicated as park.
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Statement of Significance

1379 Esquimalt Road - St. Peter and St. Paul’s Church

Common Name: St. Peter and St. Paul’s Church

Other Names:
e St. Paul's Anglican Church (re: Heritage Designation Bylaw, 1999, No. 2377)
e St. Paul's Naval and Garrison Church
e 1379 Esquimalt Road

Civic Address: 1379 Esquimalt Road

Description of Historic Place

St. Peter and St. Paul’'s Church sits at the corner of Esquimalt Road and Grafton Street
in the Township of Esquimalt. It is a small wooden Gothic Vernacular Style church, with
a steeple at its west end. It is white with black trim. The church is set amongst several
large mature trees. There is a small cemetery on the eastern side of the church.

Heritage Value

St. Peter and St. Paul’'s Church is valued for its historic, spiritual, and aesthetic heritage
values.

St. Peter and St. Paul’'s Church is valued as a symbol of the importance of the early
military presence in the development of the Esquimalt community. Built with an
Admiralty grant, and originally located at the foot of Signal Hill, close to the gates of the
Dockyard, the church is representative of the connection between the community of
Esquimalt and the Royal Navy. Built in 1866, the church is one of the earliest surviving
buildings in Esquimalt, and is a historic landmark situated on the virtual border between
Esquimalt and the naval lands [Canadian Forces Base (CRF) Esquimalt], where it was
moved to in 1904. The church was dismantled board-by-board and reassembled at its
present location, to safeguard it from the threat of damage from gunnery practice at
Signal Hill.

St. Peter and St. Paul’'s Church is important to Esquimalt’s heritage as a place of
memorial. The interior of the church houses numerous features and artifacts that
celebrate and honour the dedication of Esquimalt’s earliest settlers, church
congregation members, and also the community’s naval heritage. In particular, the
memorial stained glass windows reflect the desire of the church community to create
points of remembrance for significant members of the church, local, and naval
communities. The fact that, the installation of memorial stained glass windows has



1379 Esquimalt Road - St. Peter and St. Paul's Church

endured as a commemorative practice in this church, with windows dating from 1878,
1960, and 2012, reflects the ongoing importance of St. Peter and St. Paul's Church as
not only a place of worship but also as a centre for the commemoration of over 150
years of Esquimalt’s local and military heritage. The importance of this location as a
place of commemoration is further evident with the presence of the centre panel of the
first war memorial, built in Canada (dating to 1917) and honouring those people killed in
action during the First World War, which now hangs on the inside of the south wall of
the church. The small cemetery next to the church holds value as a record of early
community members.

Architecturally, the church is valued as a building of pioneer architect Thomas Trounce;
who was important to the design and construction of many of the early buildings on the
Dockyard base. Constructed by contractor William Sayward Parsons, the Gothic styling
of the church reflects the typical aesthetic for Anglican churches of this era. The
architectural significance of this building is further reinforced by the addition of transepts
and the installation of the first memorial stained glass windows, both supervised by
prolific early architect John Teague, in 1879.

Spiritually, St. Peter and St. Paul's Church is a reflection of the importance of the
Anglican Church in the development of the mid-nineteenth century colonial town. As the
fourth-oldest Anglican Church on Vancouver Island, St. Peter and St. Paul’'s Church
demonstrates the ideals of town builders at that time — places of worship were seen as
an integral component of complete and ideal communities. It is significant that this
church continues to function in its original purpose. The ongoing importance of this
church as a place of worship is also evident in the historic 1891 pipe organ, which has
been accompanying services in this place since 1912. The organ received heritage
designation from the Royal Canadian College of Organists in 2006.

Character-Defining Elements

The heritage character of historic St. Peter and St. Paul’'s Church is defined by the
following elements:

e Gothic Vernacular style architecture, including features such as the steeply
pitched roof, tripartite pointed-arch windows, simple white ship-lap siding with
black corner boards and accents, and a louvered bell tower surmounted by a
spire.

e Wooden construction elements of the 1886 design, and 1879 addition to the
church, including doors, paneling, siding, and trim.

e The footprint of the church, which reflects its original 1866 design, and its 1879
additions.

e The memorial stained glass windows, including excellent examples of the work of
Clayton & Bell, London, England, and Mercer & Schaefer Glass Studios, Victoria.

e Evidence of the building’s move in 1904, including the rubble foundation dating to
that time.
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e The use of the church as a place of worship.

e Interior features of the church that commemorate significant pioneers,
congregation members, and military persons and events, including the font, the
WWI memorial, the life buoy from HMCS Condor, the Pulpit, the Altar, many flags
of naval vessels and historic events that have been “laid up” here for
safekeeping, and the sanctuary furniture, and the bell.

e The small cemetery next to the church.

e The 1891 pipe organ hand built by the Peter Conacher Company in Huddersfield,
England.
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CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ESQUIMALT

BYLAW NO. 2377

A Bylaw to designate St. Paul’'s Church building at
1379 Esquimalt Road as a Heritage Building

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF
ESQUIMALT, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

This bylaw may be cited as the “HERITAGE DESIGNATION (1379 ESQUIMALT ROAD )
BYLAW, 1999, NO. 2377

That Bylaw No. 2377 provides as follows:

(1)

(2)

(3)

a)

b)

That the existing church building shown cross-hatched on Schedule “A”
attached to and forming part of this bylaw located on that parcel of land
commonly known as 1379 Esquimalt Road and situate in the Township of
Esquimalt in the Province of British Columbia and more particularly
described as Lot 1, Suburban Lot 27, Section 339 MA, Esquimalt District,
Plan 5092 shall be and is hereby provided heritage designation pursuant to
Section 967 of the Municipal Act.

That in the event that all or part of the parcel described as Lot 1, Suburban
Lot 27, Section 339 MA, Esquimalt District, Plan 5092 is subdivided, the
Township shall, pursuant to Section 976 of the Municipal Act, notify the
Land Titles office of the change in the legal description of the property upon
which the church building is situated. The heritage designation of the church
building shall not be diminished or affected by any such change in the legal
description of the parcel.

No person shall alter, remove or take action that would damage or change the said
existing church building provided heritage designation by this bylaw without benefit
of a heritage alteration permit approved by the Municipal Council.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Clause 2(2) above, the following activities may be
carried out without benefit of a heritage alteration permit approved by the Municipal
Council:

(a)

(b)

general maintenance and upkeep of the exterior of the existing
building. Such maintenance to include periodic repairs, cleaning and
painting to the exterior;

interior renovations.

Read a first time by the Municipal Council on May 31,1999.

Read a second time by the Municipal Council on May 31, 1999.
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A Public Hearing was held pursuant to Section 890 of the Municipal Act
on June 28, 1999.

Read a third time by the Municipal Council on June 28, 1999.
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ADOPTED by the Municipal Council on July 12, 1999.

MUKICIPAL CLERK
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